
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MEETINGS 

1:30 p.m.

Friday, May 13, 2016

2ND FLOOR, J.S. CLARK ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Friday, May 13, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Invocation 

 

2. Roll Call  

 

3.  Adoption of the Agenda 

 

4.  Public Comments 

 

5. Action Items 

 

A. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000 
 

Name Title Salary 

1. Alencia C. Ellis Associate Director, Student Health Center 

New Appointment, SUBR 

$95,000 

2. Claudia Robin  Clinical Pharmacist 

Salary Adjustment, SUBR 
$92,074 

3. Averil Sanders Director, SU Laboratory School 

New Appointment, SUBR 

$90,000 

4. Kent Smith                        Small Business Development Center Director 

New Appointment, SUBR 

$82,000 

5. Brandy Jacobsen Interim Vice Chancellor for Finance & Administration 

Continuation, SUSLA 
$88,065 

6. Carolyn Miller Interim Director of Information Technology 

Continuation, SUSLA 
$78,795 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 
Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Chair, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Vice Chair, 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr. 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 

 











































11/16/2015 

Averil Sanders, Jr., M.Ed. 
6027 Tuscany Ln. 
Sorrento, LA 70778 
(504) 756-8975 
averilsanders@gmail.com  

James Taylor 
Southern University Laboratory School 
129 Swan St. 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

Dear Mr. Taylor: 

I am extremely interested in joining the Southern University Laboratory School family. I am a 
highly experienced educator with documented school turnaround results, and I am confident my 
experience and knowledge will allow me to make valuable contributions to the program. My aca-
demic credentials include a Bachelor of Science in English Education from Grambling State Uni-
versity and a Master of Education in Educational Leadership from the University of New Orle-
ans. Additionally, I will receive a Juris Doctorate from the Southern University Law Center in 
December of 2015. 

As a solutions-focused leader with a comprehensive background in school policy and procedure 
development, budgeting and developing community partnerships and relationships, I have con-
tinuously demonstrated exceptional supervisory and analytical skills with a focus on implement-
ing process improvements, developing targeted plans, and achieving goals within budgets, time-
lines, and delivery dates for traditional public schools and charter organizations in New Orleans 
and Baton Rouge. My career experience includes: 

• developing and opening two schools for the Algiers Charter Schools Association, leading the 
implementation of The System for Student and Teacher Advancement (TAP) Glen Oaks Mid-
dle with Advance Baton Rouge Charter Schools, 

• establishing and fostering a community dialog to facilitate John McDonogh High's transition 
to a charter school, 

• providing strategic leadership and visioning for Lee High during its transition from a tradi-
tional high school to a STEM-focused magnet high school and increasing the school's perfor-
mance score by 46 points in its second year, and 

• providing strategic leadership and vision during the rebranding of the Christa McAuliffe Su-
perintendent's Academy, which included redefining the academic programming. 



You will find the accompanying resume covers my past accomplishments, imperative skills, and 
experience in detail. My strong initiative and commitment to education excellence and equity, 
coupled with my solid school management background will be of immediate value to your pro-
gram. I hope I have the opportunity to contribute to your organization's plans and goals, and I 
look forward to your response. Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Avent 3anuers, Jr., M.Ed. 



Averil Sanders, Jr., M.Ed. 

Career Objective 

Join a strong educational organization where my leadership experience, problem solving and initiative 
will allow me to help attain organizational goals, while affording me personal and professional opportuni-
ties for growth commensurate with my performance. 

Experience  

East Baton Rouge Parish School Board 	 July 2012- Present 
Principal, Lee High School and Christa McAuliffe Superintendent's Academy 

Provided strategic leadership during the redevelopment of Christa McAuliffe's academic program and 
school vision and Lee High's transition to an academic magnet high school with a S'1EM focus; imple-
mented a strategic recruiting strategy to attract targeted students; worked with stakeholders to create a 
school vision that reflected community needs and beliefs; recruited and hired teachers and staff with spe-
cialized experience and certifications relative to each school's vision; provided professional development 
for teachers and staff based on student achievement, school vision and teacher and staff need; imple-
mented instructional strategies that increased student achievement for all students; evaluated teachers and 
staff each semester; developed student, family and community relationships that fostered a strong student 
culture; established professional practices and effective systems that sustained a safe, orderly and motiva-
tional school culture for students and their families; and developed and maintained industry and higher 
education relationships and resources for long term school sustainability. 

Louisiana Recovery School District 	 July 2011- July 2012 
Principal, John McDonogh Senior High 

Provided strategic leadership and vision during the school's transition from a direct run Recovery School 
District high school to a Type 5 Charter; worked with stakeholders to create a school vision that reflected 
community needs and beliefs; sought and secured teachers and staff with the experience and commitment 
to serve at-risk students; implemented instructional strategies that increased student achievement for all; 
evaluated teachers and staff each semester; provided professional development for teachers and staff 
based on student achievement, the school vision and individual evaluation results; developed student and 
family relationships that led to decreased student suspensions and expulsions; implemented processes and 
procedures that sustained a safe, orderly and motivational school culture for students and their families; 
implemented school-wide professional practices and effective systems that maximized student achieve-
ment; and reestablished John McDonogh High School as a community partner. 

Advance Baton Rouge Charter Schools Association 	 July 2009- July 2011 
Principal, Glen Oaks Charter School 

Worked with stakeholders to create a school vision that reflected community needs and beliefs; imple-
mented the Teacher Advancement Program (TAP) as the school's reform initiative; sought and secured 
teachers and staff with the experience and commitment to serve at-risk students; implemented instruc-
tional strategies that increased academic achievement for all students; evaluated teachers and staff each 
semester; provided professional development for teachers and staff based on student achievement, the 
school vision and reform model evaluation results; developed student and family relationships that led to 
decreased student suspensions and expulsions; implemented processes and procedures that sustained a 
safe, orderly and motivational school culture for students and their families; implemented school-wide 
professional practices and effective systems that maximized student achievement; managed the Advance 
Baton Rouge Alternative School; and reestablished Glen Oaks Middle as a community centerpiece. 

6027 Tuscany Ln. Sorrento, LA 70778. (504) 756-8975. averilsanderszmail.com  



Averil Sanders, Jr., M.Ed. 

Algiers Charter Schools Association 	 July 2006- July 2009 
Asst. Principal, McDonogh #32 Charter School, Dwight D. Eisenhower Academy and Harriet Tub-
man Charter School 

Assisted the principal in developing a strong school culture by developing and leading small learning 
communities using the Teacher Advancement Program (TAP) model; managed teacher and student per-
formance data in CODE, the TAP information database; implemented and monitored teacher duty sched-
ules; monitored and documented teacher policy infractions; and led the school's positive behavioral sup-
port program. 

UNO/Pierre A. Capdau Charter School 	 January 2006-July 2006 
English/Language Arts Teacher (Hurricane Katrina) 

Taught English/Language Arts to students ranging from ages 11 to 13; prepared and maintained state re-
quired documentation of progress, as well as district wide correspondence; and participated in extra-cur-
ricular activities that promoted emotional well-being, positive self-esteem and school pride. 

Orleans Parish Schools School Board 	 April 1999- August 2005 
ELA Teacher, F. W. Gregory Jr. High School and E. H. Phillips Jr. High School 

Dean of Students, S. J. Green Learning Academy 

Taught English/Language Arts to students ranging from ages 11 to 13; prepared and maintained state re-
quired documentation of progress, as well as district wide correspondence; participated in extra-curricular 
activities that promoted positive self-esteem and school pride; developed and maintained school culture 
by monitoring, documenting and completing all documentation pertaining to school-wide discipline; 
monitored and implemented efficient school-wide procedures; monitored teacher duty posts; collected 
and distributed teacher materials and memos; and completed administrative intern tasks assigned by the 
principal. 

Benjamin Franklin Senior High 
	

April 1999-August 2005 
Asst. Football Coach (Receivers and Defensive Backs) 

Taught safe and effective football technique, strategy and sportsmanship to high school students and pre-
pared state required eligibility and participation documentation. 

Education 

Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Juris Doctorate, December 2015 (expected) 

University of New Orleans, New Orleans, Louisiana 
Master of Education in Educational Administration, May 2005 

Grambling State University, Grambling, Louisiana 
Bachelor of Science in English Education, December 1998 

Organizational Affiliations  

School Leadership Center of Greater New Orleans Fellow 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity, Inc. 

6027 Tuscany Ln. Sorrento, LA 70778. (504) 756-8975. averilsanders(kwaitcom 



Averil Sanders, Jr., M.Ed. 

References available upon request 

6027 Tuscany Ln. Sorrento, LA 70778. (504) 756-8975. averilsanders(&2mail.com  





















































SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(following Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Friday, May 13, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 
 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 

4. Special Presentation 

 Southern University Laboratory School Choir 

Mr. Ernest Williams, Director 
 

 Southern University Laboratory School Boy’s Track Team 
 

 Southern University Shreveport Men’s Basketball Team 

 

5. Public Comments 

6. Action Items 
 

A. Minutes of the April 22, 2016, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

B. Approval of Committee Report and Recommendations 
 

C. Appointment of Dr. Victor Ukpolo as Professor of Economics, SUNO 

(Executive Session may be required) 
 

D. Appointment of Lisa Mims-Devezin, as Interim Chancellor, SUNO 

E. Approval of Distinguished Research Professor, SUBR 

F. Ratification of Honorary Doctorate for Congressman Cedric Richmond, SUBR 

G. Approval to Increase Summer School Tuition, SUSLA 

H. Approval to Raise Out-of-State Tuition, SULC  

I. Approval to Increase Student Success Fee, SULC 

J. Acceptance of Donation of Artificial Turf Field for A.W. Mumford Stadium from 

Southern University System Foundation, SUBR 
 

K. Natalie Ellison Settlement Agreement, SUSLA  (Executive Session may be required) 

L. BA-7 #9 Request for Mid-Year  Budget Adjustment 

M. Interim Financial Report As of April 2016, SUS 
 



Page 2 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Agenda 
May 13, 2016 

N. Authorization to Resume Search for Chancellor of the Southern University Agricultural

Research and Extension Center and Dean of the College of Agriculture

O. Request Authorization to Search for SUNO Chancellor

P. Approval of Evaluation Instrument for President-Chancellor

Q. Resolutions

6. Informational Items

A. Legislative Update

B. GRAD Act Report

C. System President’s Report

D. Campus Reports

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment



Southern University and A&M College System 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

2nd Floor; J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

9 a.m. 
Friday, April 22, 2016 

Minutes 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Leon R. Tarver II.  The 
invocation was given by The Rev. Joe R. Gant.  

PRESENT  
Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. Dominique Diamond, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. 

Gant, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mr. Darren Mire, Mr. 

Michael Small, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Dr. Rani Whitfield. 

ABSENT 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING  
System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Robyn Merrick, Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost 
(EVPAAP) M. Christopher Brown, Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs Flandus McClinton, Chancellor Victor 
Ukpolo (SUNO), Interim Chancellor Adell Brown (SUAREC), Chancellor Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Chancellor John Pierre, 
(SULC)  

BOARD COUNSEL  
Attys. Winston Decuir, Jr. and Tracie Woods 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
9:00 a.m.  

Friday, April 22, 2016 
Southern University-Baton Rouge 

2nd Floor; J. S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Minutes  

The Academic Affairs Committee was convened by Committee Chair Ann Smith. 

Roll Call 
Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Atty. Tony Clayton, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Mr. Michael A. Small, Dr. Rani Whitfield and Dr. Leon R. 

Tarver II 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion of Dr. Gaines and seconded by Mr. Michael Small the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Dr. Sudhir Trivedi voiced concerns that the Academic Stabilization Plan needs extensive vetting and deliberation by the 
faculty and other stakeholders and he stated that he is concerned that lumping together different disciplines to give the 
appearance of efficiency will harm the University. 

Faculty Senate President Thomas Miller stated that the restructuring of the University’s colleges and schools have 



Page 2 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 
 
happened over time and faculty were involved.  The most recent meeting of faculty occurred during the spring faculty 
convocation. All configurations were considered and discussed.  Faculty members voted to select the configuration that 
best suited the University.  
 

Mr. George Amedee, Professor, Political Science and President of the Faculty Senate at SUNO addressed Board members 
about the fact that faculty members at SUNO have been denied the opportunity to complete the tenure and promotion 
process. 
 

Dr. Chester Mills voiced a complaint regarding the delay in sending retention, tenure and promotion applications 
forward to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  He stated that Dr. Ukpolo and his administration have violated the 
timeline as it relates to the procedure for tenure and promotion. 
 

Committee Chair Ann Smith asked Dr. Ukpolo to address the concerns voiced by SUNO faculty.  Dr. Ukpolo stated that 
he spoke with the Faculty Senate last week regarding the tenure and promotion process.  He stated that his reluctance 
to send forward the tenure and promotion packets at this time was based on the uncertainty of the state’s budget 
situation.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS  

A. Request Approval of Academic Stabilization Plan, SUBR 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Rev. Joe R. Gant, the Academic Stabilization Plan was 
recommended for approval. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. Request Approval of Recommendation to fill Endowed Professorship Vacancies, SULC 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Rev. Joe R. Gant, the endowed professorship vacancies 
at the SU Law Center were recommended for approval. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. Request Approval of Recommendation to Fill Endowed Professorship Vacancies, SUNO 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Michael Small, the endowed professorship 
vacancies at the SU Law Center were recommended for approval. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

D. Request Approval of Recommendation to Fill Endowed Professorship Vacancies, SUSLA 

Upon the motion by Mr. Richard Hilliard and seconded by Rev. Joe R. Gant, the endowed professorship 
vacancies at SU Shreveport were recommended for approval. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

E. Request Approval of Promotion Recommendations, SULC 

In response to a question from Board member Atty. Tony Clayton regarding the promotion recommendations, 
Chancellor John Pierre stated that the professors presented for promotion are those who are eligible to apply 
based upon their years of service.  He stated that the SULC Tenure and Promotion Committee has reviewed the 
candidate’s applications and were recommended for approval. The recommendations are now being presented 
to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  
 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines, the promotions presented for 
professors at the SU Law Center were not recommended for approval at this time, and any action on the 
promotions will be delayed until the end of the legislative session when the University will have a clearer picture 
of the budget for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 

Motion carried unanimously 
 



Page 3 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

 

 

F. Candidates for Degrees, Spring 2016 Commencement Exercises 

Upon the motion by Dr. Curman Gaines and seconded by Atty. Tony Clayton, candidates for degrees during the 
Spring 2016 Commencement Exercises were recommended for approval. 
 

Motion carried unanimously 

G. Approval of Modification of Criteria for SUS Posthumous Degree Policy 
Dr. M. Christopher Brown stated that the University currently has a posthumous degree policy that restricts the 
Board from awarding a posthumous degree unless the student is within 30 credits of graduating, in good 
financial standing, it must be requested by the parents, voted on by the faculty, a copy of the death certificate 
must be presented and several other checklist items.  The presented policy transitions the process to a 
recommendation by the campus and gives the flexibility to the president and Board to investigate the merit of 
the student and it restricts the awarding of the degree to a two-year period. 
 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines, the modification of criteria for 
awarding posthumous degree policy was recommended for approval. 
 

Motion carried unanimously 
 

H. Approval of Honorary Doctorate, SUBR 

President Belton deferred to Atty. Tony Clayton who stated that the proposed honorary degree recipient is Mr. 

Joseph Delpit, who is the first black elected official in East Baton Rouge Parish who served on the city council.  

He stated that Mr. Delpit has fought tirelessly for Southern University and the presentation would be an honor 

to the Delpit family. 
 

Upon the motion by Chairman Tarver and seconded by Atty. Clayton, the recommendation to award an 

honorary degree of humane letters to Mr. Joseph Delpit was approved. 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the Academic Affairs Committee adjourned. 

 

RECONVENTION 
 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines, the Academic Affairs Committee 

reconvened. 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the agenda was amended to add the 

approval of a letter of intent to offer a certificate of general studies degree at SU Shreveport.  
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

I. Approval of Letter of Intent to Offer Certificate of General Studies Degree, SUSLA 

Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the letter of intent to offer a certificate of 

general studies degree at SU Shreveport was recommended for approval.  
 

Motion passed unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Chairman Tarver, the Academic Affairs Committee 
adjourned. 



Page 4 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

ATHLETICS COMMITTEE 

(Following the Academic Affairs Committee) 
Friday, April 22, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 
2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Athletics Committee was convened by Committee Chair Atty. Tony Clayton. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. Rani Whitfield, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Darren G. 

Mire, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by Dr. Whitfield and seconded by Dr. Tarver, the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

The motion passed unanimously.  

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

A. 2016 Football Schedule, SUBR 
The 2016 schedule was included in the meeting packet.  Board member Myron Lawson asked the reason that the 

football team always opened the season with an away game.  Board member Tony Clayton stated that he did not 

understand the reasoning for the decision either and that he would like the administration to become more 

involved in negotiations with the opposing team’s schools.  Atty. Clayton also stated that he feels that the 

University is not being compensated enough. 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Richard Hilliard the Athletics Committee adjourned. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Page 5 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following the Athletics Committee) 

Friday, April 22, 2016 
Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 

 
AGENDA 

 
The Finance Committee was convened by Committee Chair Myron Lawson. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. Darren Mire,  
Dr. Leon R. Tarver II 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Rev. Donald R. Henry the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

A. Interim Financial Report as of March 2016, SUS 
 

The interim financial report was included in the Board packet and discussed by Vice President for Finance 

and Business Affairs Flandus McClinton.  He stated that revenue and expenditures are on target. 

 AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Rev. Donald R. Henry, the Finance Committee adjourned. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following the Finance Committee) 

Friday, April 22, 2016 
Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 

 

MINUTES 
 

The Personnel Affairs Committee was convened by Committee Chair Patrick Magee. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion of Mr. Myron Lawson and seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith the agenda was recommended for adoption.  
 

Motion carried unanimously 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Dr. Chester Mills of SUNO spoke about the appointment of Dr. David Adegboye as a tenured professor in the department 
of biological sciences at SUNO and an assumed proposed appointment as Interim Chancellor of the SUNO campus.  
 
Dr. George Amedee also spoke about the appointment of Dr. David Adegboye as an interim chancellor at the SUNO 
campus and the fact that the executive committee of the Faculty Senate was told that Dr. Adegboye would be 
appointed.  He outlined the characteristics that the person must possess. 
 
SGA President at SUNO Brian Alexander addressed the Board about funds that will be expended to replace Dr. Victor 
Ukpolo. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000 

Committee Chair Patrick Magee stated that the personnel actions would be voted upon separately. 
  

5A.1 – Dr. David Sunday Adegboye 
 

Dr. Tarver made a motion to approve the personnel action for Dr. David Adegboye. 
  

There was no second. 
 

Motion failed for lack of a second. 

 
5A.2 – Henry Thurman, Interim Executive Director of Facilities Services, SUBR 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the personnel action for Henry 

Thurman was recommended for approval. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

5A.3 – Eli Guillory, Interim System Director of Facilities Planning, SUS 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the personnel action for Eli Guillory 

was recommended for approval. 

 



Page 7 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

Roll Call Vote was taken: 

Yeas:  Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Dr. Leon R. Tarver 

II 

Nays:  None 

Motion passed unanimously. 

In response to Committee Chair Patrick Magee about a plan to permanently fill the positions of Facilities 

Planning Director and Facilities Services Director, Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs Flandus 

McClinton stated that a search committee would be established to find permanent candidates for both positions 

in the next 2-3 months.  Due to the death of Mr. Endas Vincent and the resignation of Mr. Jermaine Myers, it 

was imperative to have leadership in the offices.  Mr. Guillory will be temporarily holding the positon formerly 

held by Mr. Endas Vincent.  Mr. Thurman will be temporarily replacing Mr. Guillory’s former position. 

5A.4 - Walfredo Javier, Professor, Math, Physics, and Science and Math Education 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines the personnel action for Dr. 

Walfredo Javier was recommended for approval. 

Roll Call Vote was taken: 

Yeas:  Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Dr. Leon R. Tarver 

II 

Nays:  None 

Motion passed unanimously. 

5B. Approval of Employment Contract for Chancellor John Pierre, SULC 

Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded Mr. Myron Lawson the employment contract for 

Chancellor John Pierre was recommended for approval. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  INFORMATION ITEM 
A. Updated Employment Agreement for Chancellor Rodney Ellis, SUSLA 

Committee Chair Patrick Magee deferred to President Chancellor Belton who stated that the contract has 
been revised to include appropriate benchmarks for the Chancellor. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Atty. Tony Clayton and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson, the Personnel Affairs Committee 
adjourned. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

 



Page 8 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

(Following the Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Friday, April 22, 2016 
Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana  70813 

 
MINUTES 

 

The Board of Supervisors meeting was convened by Board Chair Leon R. Tarver II 
 

PRESENT  
Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. Dominique Diamond, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. 

Gant, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mr. Darren Mire, Mr. 

Michael Small, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Dr. Rani Whitfield. 

ABSENT 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith the agenda was recommended for adoption.  
 

Motion carried unanimously 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Dr. Dawn Mellieon-Patin addressed Board members about the realignment of the Ag Center.  There were numerous 
constituents, retired faculty members including Dr. Leodrey Williams, former Chancellor, who attended the meeting in 
support of the SU Agricultural Research and Extension Center.  Many addressed Board members to let them know the 
manner in which the SUAREC has helped them. 
 

SUNO SGA President Brian Alexander addressed Board members about the persons that comprise the selection 
committee for Chancellor of the New Orleans campus. 
 

Dr. Albert Samuels addressed Board members about the Academic Stabilization Plan.  He suggested that there are 
various departments that may warrant further consideration in becoming departments or in being placed in a certain 
college.  He asked that more consideration be given to the placement of the departments of psychology, social work, 
and sociology.   
 

Dr. Mills of SUNO requested again that the Board investigate the matter of the retention, tenure and promotion process 
at SUNO. 
 

Ms. Nicollette Gordon, area extension agent in St. Helena Parish explained that many of the high school students that 
addressed the Board were encouraged to do so as part of a civics exercise.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 5: SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

A. Men’s & Women’s Basketball, SUBR 
Interim Athletics Director and Head Men’s Basketball Coach Roman Banks presented the SU Men’s Basketball 
Team. Board Member Tony Clayton congratulated the team on behalf of the Board of Supervisors and 
commended the team for their discipline on and off the basketball court.  Board Member Raymond Fondel 
also stated that he fully supports the athletic program.  He has travelled with the team on several occasions 
and congratulated the coaching staff for a job well done. 



Page 9 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 
 
At the request of the Board chair the Legislative Update was given to allow the Southern Strategy Group to 
depart for the legislative session. 

  
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 
Mr. Kevin Cunningham and Mr. Rodney Braxton attended the meeting to brief Board members on the bills 
relative to higher education and to Southern University.  Mr. Cunningham discussed the capital outlay bills and 
Mr. Braxton discussed the higher education management Board bills.  Chairman Tarver stated that Atty. Preston 
Castille also stated that he gave testimony on HB 152 which is the proposed bill to create a single management 
Board for higher education in the state.  

  
The SUSLA delegation was recognized by Rev. Joe R. Gant and stated that Ms. Sonya Hester was re-elected as 
faculty senate president 

 
 Mr. Myron K. Lawson recognized former Board member Mrs. Etta Brew who was in the audience. 
 

Mr. Raymond Fondel recognized Ms. Geralyn A. Janice, Dean of Central Louisiana Technical College who is 
working with Dr. Belton as a part of the Louisiana Community and Technical College Leadership Program. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEM 

A. Minutes of the March 18, 2016, regular meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors  

On the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Rev. Donald R. Henry the minutes of the March 18, 2016, 
meeting were presented for approval. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for the Southern University System, that the minutes of the March 18, 
2016, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, be and it is hereby approved. 

 
B. Committee Reports and Recommendations 

 

As it relates to the Academic Stabilization Plan, Atty. Patrick Magee asked for clarification on those areas that 

will require additional consideration for being placed into a college or school.  Chairman Tarver asked Dr. M. 

Christopher Brown to provide an explanation.  Dr. Brown stated that the departments of psychology, history and 

Science and Math Education (SMED) will be given additional consideration; however, the proposed structure 

presented is a framework for stabilizing the academic units. If any changes are proposed, Dr. Brown stated that 

he would bring them back to Board members.  Board Member Ann Smith asked Dr. Brown to also give 

consideration to the graduate school configuration.  Dr. Brown stated that there is a general consensus among 

faculty members on the plan presented. 

Rev. Joe Gant stated that he was pleased at the show of support for the SU Ag Center and asked President 

Belton to explain the structure that he is proposing for the consolidation of the Agricultural Research and 

Extension Center (SUAREC).  President Belton stated that he has been engaged with many of the faculty 

members, the staff senate of the SUAREC, the administration and stakeholders including the USDA.  Dr. Belton 

also said that he is proposing that the College of Agriculture and the SUAREC will be led by a Vice President of 

SUAREC and Dean of the College of Agriculture.  Chairman Tarver stated he recalled the reason why the title 

Chancellor was given to the leader of the SUAREC and he stated the reason is that Southern University is the 

only HBCU college system in America.  So for that reason, the title Chancellor could remain. 



Page 10 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee and seconded by Rev. Donald R. Henry items A, B, and D were 

recommended for approval and will include the provision that the Academic Stabilization Plan will not conflict 

with other degree programs in the System. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

A.  ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
 

1. Request Approval of Academic Stabilization Plan, SUBR 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the Academic 

Affairs Committee, that the Academic Stabilization Plan, SUBR be and it is hereby approved. 
 

2. Request Approval of Recommendation to fill Endowed Professorship Vacancies, SULC 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the Academic 

Affairs Committee, that the Endowed Professorship Vacancies at the SULC be filled and it is hereby 

approved. 
 

Endowed Professorship Faculty Member 

1. B.K. Agnihotri Endowed Professorship Angela Allen Bell 

2. Clyde Tidewell Endowed Professorship Shenequa Grey 

3. Horatio Thompson Endowed Professorship Christopher Odinet 

4. A.A. Lenoir Endowed Professorship Gail Stephenson 

 

 

3. Request Approval of Recommendations for Endowed Professorship positions, SUNO 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that the Endowed Professorship Vacancies at SUNO be filled and it is 

hereby approved. 

 

Endowed Professorship Faculty Member 

1. AT&T Endowed Professorship  Dr. Adnan Omar 

2. James & Ruth Smith Endowed Professorship Dr. Joe Omojola 

 

4. Request Approval of Recommendations to fill Endowed Professorships, SUSLA 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that the Endowed Professorship Vacancies at SUSLA be filled and it is 

hereby approved. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 11 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

 

 

 

Endowed Professorship Faculty Member 

1. Capital One Endowed Professorship in Business  George Lewis, III 

2. Jack B. Binion Endowed Professorship in 
Business II 

Dr. Regina Webb 

3. James & Ruth Smith Endowed Professorship in 
Science and Technology 

Dr. Barry Hester 

4. Caddo Parish Endowed Professorship in Business Mr. Aylwin Holmon 

5. Dr. and Mrs. C.O. Simpkins Endowed 
Professorship in Nursing 

Mrs. Tiffany Varner 

 

5. Candidates for Degrees, Spring 2016 Commencement Exercises 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that the candidates for graduation at SUBR, SULC, SUNO, and SUSLA 

be and it is hereby approved. 

  

6. Approval of Modification of Criteria for SUS Posthumous Degree Policy 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that the criteria presented for the Posthumous Degree Policy be and it 

is hereby approved. 

 

7. Approval of Honorary Doctorate, SUBR 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that an honorary degree of humane letters be bestowed upon Mr. 

Joseph Delpit and it is hereby approved. 

 

8. Approval of Letter of Intent to Offer Certificate of General Studies Degree, SUSLA 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the 

Academic Affairs Committee, that the letter of intent to offer a certificate of general studies be and 

it is hereby approved. 

 

B. PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the recommendation of the Personnel 
Affairs Committee, that the Administration’s recommendation for approval of positions with salaries greater 
than $60,000 be and they are hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 12 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. Request Approval to Adopt New Organizational Model for Agriculture Research, Teaching and Extension 
Programs 
 

On the motion of Atty. Patrick Magee and seconded by Rev. Donald R. Henry the consolidation of the College of 

Agriculture and the SU Agricultural Research and Extension Center was recommended for approval. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Agricultural Research, and Extension 
Center and the College of Agriculture be combined with the leader of the campus having the title of Chancellor of 
the SUAREC and Dean of the College of Agriculture. 

E.  Request to Grant Degrees Posthumously to Annette January and LaShuntae Benton, SUBR 
 

 

Upon the motion of Mr. Raymond Fondel and seconded by Rev. Joe R. Gant that degrees be awarded 

posthumously to Annette January and LaShuntae Benton during the spring commencement exercises. 
 

Chairman Tarver asked that a moment of silence be taken in recognition of the young ladies. 
 

 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

F. Resolutions 
 

Upon the motion by Rev. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson that the resolutions be approved. 

Condolences: 

The Steven O’neal Smith Family. Mr. Smith, native of Kentwood, LA and grandson of Board member Ann Smith 

and husband Harold, passed away April 1. 

 

The Harry Albert Family. Dr. Albert, retired Behavioral Studies department chair in the College of Education at 

SUBR, passed away on April 7. 

 
The Eugene Calvasina Family. Dr. Calvasina, former department chair of Management and Marketing in the 
College of Business passed away on March 27.  
 
The Arthur Noflin, Jr. Family. Mr. Noflin, a native of Baton Rouge, LA, was a 1997 alumnus of the School of 
Public Policy at SUBR, passed away on March 18.   

Name Title Salary  

1. Dr. David Sunday Adegboye Professor of Biology (Tenured) 

New Appointment, SUNO 

$87,602 

2. Henry Thurman 
 

Interim Executive Director of Facilities Services  

New Appointment, SUBR 

$61,605 

3. Eli Guillory Interim System Director of Facilities Planning, SUS $79,133 

4. Walfredo Javier Professor 

Math, Physics, and Science and math, Education 

N/A 



Page 13 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 

The Raj Prabaharan Family.  Dr. Prabaharan, Associate Professor in the Department of Mathematics at SUBR 

passed away on March 14.  

 

The Endas Vincent Family. Mr. Vincent, retired Director of Facilities Planning for the Southern University 

System, passed away on March 23. 

 

The Annette January Family. Ms. January, a native of Gary, Indiana and student at SUBR who was a member of 

the women’s track team and a management major in the College of Business passed away Sunday, April 10.  

 

The LaShuntae Benton Family. Ms. Benton, a native of Lake Charles, LA and student at SUBR majoring in 

Therapeutic Recreation and Leisure Studies in the College of Education passed away Sunday, April 10. 

Commendations: 

Board Member Myron Lawson stated that Professor Isaiah Warner of LSU was named SEC professor of the Year. 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the resolutions and commendations be and 
they are hereby approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  Informational Items  

A.        Legislative Update (Given during Special Presentations) 
 
B.  System President’s Report  

President-Chancellor Ray Belton stated that he appreciated working with the SUAREC staff and the 
college faculty to develop the best model for implementation.  Dr. Belton stated that he would be 
visiting the SUNO campus to meet with faculty and staff.  Dr. Belton also recognized the Indian Student 
Association led by Dr. Sudhir Trivedi who have established a scholarship in the amount of $2,000 in 
honor of Annette January and LaShuntae Benton for any student that will major in computer science.  In 
response to a question from Board Member Tony Clayton about a search for the leader of the Ag 
Center. Dr. Belton stated that the search would resume and the process would have to begin again so 
that the job description can be modified, but the search committee is already in place.   
 
 

C. Campus Reports 

SUNO - Dr. Victor Ukpolo submitted a printed copy of the report which was included in the meeting 

packet and invited Board members to the commencement exercises at SUNO on Saturday, May 7. 
 

SUSLA – Dr. Rodney Ellis submitted a written report that was included in the Board packet.  Dr. Ellis also 

invited Board members to the SUSLA commencement on May 3 at 7 p.m. where Bernice King will give 

the commencement address.  Also informed Board members that SUSLA Faculty Senate President Sonya 

Hester also has been named counselor at large for the American Association of University Professors.  

He also recognized Men’s Basketball Coach David Francis for being named National Junior College Coach 

of the Year and Deangelo McClinton who was named player of the year in the Junior College League 

during the annual Louisiana Association of Basketball Coaches Awards Banquet. 
 

SUAREC - Dr. Adell Brown submitted a written report of the activities of the SU Agricultural, Research 

and Extension Center.  He thanked all of the supporters who attended the Board meeting to address the 

Board. 

 
 



Page 14 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
April 22, 2016 

 
 
 
SULC - Atty. John Pierre submitted a written report to Board members with updates and news from the 
SU Law Center. Atty. Pierre announced that SULC graduate Dennis Blunt is Chair of the Greater Baton 
Rouge Foundation Bar. 
 

SUBR – Dr. M. Christopher Brown submitted a written report and highlighted the appointment of SUBR 
alumnus, Dr. Kim Hunter Reed, as Undersecretary of Education in the Obama administration.  Dr. Brown 
also reminded Board members about the National Academic Signing Day on April 23. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8: Other Business 

Executive Associate Robyn Merrick announced the Walk for Humanity event that will be held in 

downtown Baton Rouge. 

Chairman Tarver announced that Robyn Merrick would be receiving her doctoral degree in Public Policy 

during commencement exercises at SUBR. 

Board Member Rev. Joe R. Gant announced that Dr. M. Christopher Brown would be delivering the 

sermon at his church in Shreveport at 5:45 p.m. 

Board Member Fondel also reminded Board members about National Academic Signing Day. 

AGENDA ITEM 9: Adjournment 

Upon the motion by Mr. Myron Lawson and seconded by Atty. Tony Clayton the meeting adjourned. 













7558 Marquis St., New Orleans, LA  70128 
(504) 246-9552 

  lmims@suno.edu 

 

Lisa Mims-Devezin  
Improving Performance • Enhancing Programs • Inspiring Systemic Change 

 
EXPERIENCED EDUCATOR 

…dedicated to guiding diverse learners to succeed while inspiring an insatiable passion for teaching, 

research, mentoring and service. 

 

Visionary Leader, Bridge Builder and Committed Educator with an earned doctorate in Science/Math Education 
coupled with over 20 years’ experience instructing diverse learners, securing resources, and implementing an effective 
program in Health Information Managements Systems.  
 
SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 An enthusiastic, creative, and passionate educator, mentor and advisor who believes that all individuals 
can learn and thrive in a learning environment that is stimulating, comforting and conducive to the overall 
infrastructure of each students’ unique talents and abilities. 

 Instructional Leadership - Use a balanced blend of motivational and targeted instruction methodologies to 
enhance curricula in the area of biology.  

 Leverage Resources / Strategic Collaborations – Work closely with the Board of Regents and other 
institutions to ensure that SUNO had/has involvement and strong educational alliances with other 
institutions. 
 

 
HIGHLIGHTED PROFESSIONAL TEACHING EXPERIENCE 

 

SOUTHERN UNIV. AT NEW ORLEANS, NEW ORLEANS, LA              2014 – present 
Dean, College of Arts and Sciences 

 Providing leadership and overseeing that the entire college is advanced to the highest possible level of                           
excellence. 

 Ensuring the participation of department chairs, faculty, and students in decisions which affect them/their 
departments. 

 Encouraging maximum participation of faculty and students in professional activities. 

 Encouraging maximum participation of faculty and students in community affairs.  

 Promoting the professional growth of department chairs and faculty. 

 Meeting monthly with department chairpersons, individually or collectively. 

 Coordinating, collecting and submitting teaching loads, summer faculty recommendations, and all other      
reports requested by the Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs. 

 Providing leadership in student development 

 Providing leadership in research and planning 

 Using innovative methods and materials to produce effective learning experiences including cooperative 
learning, thematic instruction, and differentiation.   

 Serve as Liaison for SUNO on the LA Board of Regents State Articulation Committee for the past twenty 
(20) years. 

 Serve as Liaison for SUNO and the Southern University System on the LA Board of Regents General 
Education Council and State Articulation Transfer Council. 

 Serve as a Leadership Team member on the LA Board of Regents Statewide Partnership for Assessment of 
Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC) assessments Committee.  

 Serve as a member of the Honore’ Advisory Board for the Honore’ Center for Undergraduate Student 
Achievement at Southern University through the Southern University System.  

 
 
 
 
 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 2 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
SOUTHERN UNIV. AT NEW ORLEANS, NEW ORLEANS, LA              2006 – 2014 

Associate Dean, College of Arts and Sciences 

 Assisting in the leadership and overseeing that the entire program of the college is advanced to the highest                                                    
possible level of excellence. 

 Coordinating, collecting and submitting teaching loads, summer faculty recommendations, and all other      
reports requested by the Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs. 

 Providing leadership in student development 

 Providing leadership in research and planning 

 Using innovative methods and materials to produce effective learning experiences including cooperative 
learning, thematic instruction, and differentiation.   

 Serve as Liaison for SUNO on the LA Board of Regents State Articulation Committee for the past twenty 
(20) years. 

 Serve as Liaison for SUNO and the Southern University System on the LA Board of Regents General 
Education Council and State Articulation Transfer Council. 

 Serve as a Leadership Team member on the LA Board of Regents Statewide Partnership for Assessment of 
Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC) assessments Committee.  

 Serve as a member of the Honore’ Advisory Board for the Honore’ Center for Undergraduate Student 
Achievement at Southern University through the Southern University System.  

 

 

Highlighted Achievements  

 Contributed and served on the committee that developed the proposal for the TMCF (Thurgood Marshall 
College Fund Collegiate Academy @ SUNO) which was approved by the Orleans Parish School Board on 
(September 19, 2013) 

 

 Wrote, defended, and developed the Health Information Management Systems Program and the Course 
Curriculum for the Health Information Management Systems Program, at Southern University at New 
Orleans (2007).  The program gained national accreditation in Spring, 2013  *** 

 Contributed to and served on the committee that developed the Forensic Science Program and the Course 
Curriculum for the Forensic Science Program, at Southern University at New Orleans (Summer 2013) 

 Contributed to a significant increase in on-line learning and articulation agreements between Southern 
University at New Orleans and two-year institutions.  

 Encouraged faculty participation in research, grant-writing, recruitment, and mentoring efforts. 

 Mentored and coached students to help boost their confidence and competencies, as evidence by research 
capabilities. 

 Worked with the College of Education and the LA Board of Regents on the PARCC (Partnership for 
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers) and Common Core Standards for the State of Louisiana 
through the PARCC Commission.  

 
 
SOUTHERN UNIV. AT NEW ORLEANS, NEW ORLEANS, LA                       2010 – present 

Professor of Biology, Natural Science Dept. 

 Classroom and laboratory instruction in General Biology for majors, non majors, General Microbiology, 
and Animal Diversity;  assessment of student performance 

 Course coordinator for General Biology for majors 

 Student advising 

 Departmental and University committee work including assisting in the development of an Honors college 
course in Science and Ethics,  

 LaCept program for Science and Education reform in Louisiana 

 Biology Professor for SUNO’s Early Start/Dual Enrollment Program 
 
SOUTHERN UNIV. AT NEW ORLEANS, NEW ORLEANS, LA                           2004 – 2010 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 3 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
Associate Professor of Biology, Natural Science Dept. 

 Classroom and laboratory instruction in General Biology for majors, non majors, General Microbiology, 
and Animal Diversity;  assessment of student performance 

 Course coordinator for General Biology for majors 

 Student advising 

 Departmental and University committee work including assisting in the development of an Honors college 
course in Science and Ethics,  

 LaCept program for Science and Education reform in Louisiana 

 Outreach coordinator for Orleans Parish elementary and middle schools  
 
SOUTHERN UNIV. AT NEW ORLEANS, NEW ORLEANS, LA                1993 – 2004 

Assistant Professor of Biology, Natural Science Dept. 

 Classroom and laboratory instruction in General Biology for majors, non-majors, General  
Microbiology, and Animal Diversity; assessment of student performance 

 Course coordinator for General Biology for majors 

 Student advising 

 Departmental and University committee work including assisting in the development of an Honors college 
course in Science and Ethics, LaCept program for Science and Education reform in Louisiana 

 Outreach coordinator for Orleans Parish elementary and middle schools  
 
 

 
 
 
 
UNIVERSITY OF IOWA, Iowa City, IA        1997 

Temporary Adjunct Assistant Professor 

 As a summer faculty research scientist in the Department of Biology and Microbiology, participated on a 
project involving the identification of strains of Pseudomonas aeruginosa found in Ascaris suum, 

 Isolation and Cultivation of organisms 

 Plating for isolation 

 CHEF Analysis 

 Plating for isolation 
 
 
LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, NEW ORLEANS, LA      1995 

Temporary Adjunct Assistant Professor 

 As a faculty research assistant, through the SUNO/LSU  CRISB (Collaborative Research In Biology), in 
the Department of Endocrinology, participated on a project with Dr. Chandan Prasad involving the use of 
Cyclo-HisPro to reduce the amount  of fat and carbohydrate intake.Isolation and Cultivation of organisms 

 Radioimmunoassay  

 ELISA Test 

 Radiation seminar 

 CHEF Analysis 
 
DILLARD UNIVERSITY, NEW ORLEANS, LA                  1993 – 2004 

Instructor of Biology, Natural Science Dept. 

 Classroom and laboratory instruction in General Biology for majors, non-majors, 
 assessment of student performance 

 Student advising 

 Departmental and University committee work including assisting in the development  
 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 4 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
   

COURSES CURRENTLY TEACHING & TAUGHT 

 
Fall 2014  Spring 2014  Fall 2013  Spring 2013 
 
Intro to Bio 105/L (1 cr) BIOL  105 (3 cr)  BIOL  105/105L BIOL  105/105L 
Intro.to Bio. 105 (3c r) BIOL  105L (1cr) BIOL  105/105L BIOL  105/105L 
BIOL 496/(0 cr)  BIOL 105 (3cr)  BIOL 496/(0 cr)    
      BIOL  217/217L 
 
Fall 2012  Spring 2012  Fall 2011  Spring 2011 
 
Intro to Bio 105/L (1 cr) BIOL  105 (3 cr)  BIOL  105/105L BIOL  105/105L 
Intro.to Bio. 105 (3c r) BIOL  105L (1cr) BIOL  105/105L BIOL  105/105L 
BIOL 496/(0 cr)  BIOL 105 (3cr)  BIOL 496/(0 cr)    
      BIOL  217/217L 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW COURSES DEVELOPED 

 
2013  Introduction to BIOL 106 8-Week On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2013   Introduction to BIOL 106 Lab 8-Week On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2013  Introduction to BIOL 105 8-Week On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2013   Introduction to BIOL 105 Lab 8-Week On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2011  Introduction to BIOL 106 On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2011   Introduction to BIOL 106 Lab On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2011  Introduction to BIOL 105 (QEP) On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2011  Introduction to BIOL 105 Lab (QEP) On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2006  Introduction to BIOL 105 On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2006  Introduction to BIOL 105 Lab On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2006   General Microbiology BIOL 217 On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
2006  General Microbiology BIOL 217 Lab On-Line Course, Southern University at New Orleans 
 

 

RESEARCH  INTEREST 

 
Microbiology and Environmental Microbiology 
 
 

 PUBLICATIONS (SHORT LIST) 

 
2009 Mims-Devezin, L.R. General Biology: A Modified Approach Laboratory Manual.   

Lulu Publishing Company,     
2007 Mims-Devezin, L, Kambhampati, M.Sl, Adegboye, D.S., Integration of 

Technology and Virtual Laboratories Into the Biology Curriculum at an Urban 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 5 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
University:  Impact on Students’ Attitude and Response.  Journal of Urban 
Education 4(1), 42 – 51. 

2005 Adegboye, D. S., Kambhampati, M. S., Mims, L. R., Hardester, L. M.,   Causey, 
M., and Clancy, A Successful model for integrating high technology courses for 
content requirements in science education: molecular biology course development 
at Southern University at New Orleans,  State of Louisiana. Journal of Urban 
Education 2(1), 151 – 158.  

2005 Kambhampati, M.S., Adegboye, D.S., Mims-Devezin, L, and Cosby, R.   
Integration of Technology into biology curriculum for teacher preparation at 
Southern University at New Orleans.  Journal of Urban Education 2(1), 10 – 18. 

2004 Mims-Devezin, College Students’ Perceptions, Attitudes, and Preconceived 
Notions about Biology.  Southern University A&M College, Southern Univ. 
Dissertation 

2004 A Successful Model for Integrating High-Technology Courses for Content 
Requirements in Science Education.  Presented at the First System-wide J.K. 
Haynes Teacher Preparation Conference, Southern University – Baton Rouge, 
LA. 

2001 Adegboye, D. S., Kambhampati, M. S., Mims, L. R., Hardester, L. M.  
Charbonnet, D., Causey, M., and Clancy, M.  Southern University at New 
Orleans, and University of New Orleans.  Case study of molecular biology course 
development at Southern University at New Orleans. SE Biology, 49 (2), 216. 

1998 Mims, L.R. General Biology Laboratory Manual.   Wm. C. Brown Publishing 
Company,    Dubuque, IA 

 
 
 
 
 

 GRANTS AWARDED (FOR THE PAST TEN YEARS) 

 
2013 Adegboye, David S. and Mims-Devezin, Lisa. SUNO Library Renovation.  

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) ($500,000.00) 

2012 Mims-Devezin, L.,  Adegboye, S., Kambhampati, M. S.  Tietzel, I. and Youngblood, 

Y., Enhancement of General Biology, Microbiology, Cell and Molecular Biology,  and 

Genetics Teaching and Research Instruction and Infrastructure at Southern University 

at New Orleans.  LA Board of Regents ($69,733.00) 

2012-2014 Youngblood, Y., Mims-Devezin, L., Harrel, E., Numbere, T.  AAUP’s Preparing 

Critical Faculty for the Future.  (AAUP) ($8,000.00) 

2012 Mims-Devezin, Adegboye, Mignott, A., and Douresseaux, L.  Enhancement Of 

Computer  Laboratory Facility For Health Information Management Systems (Hims) 

Instruction At Suno.  LA Board of Regents ($133,000.00) 

2012 Adegboye, D.S. and Mims-Devezin, L Project CALLBack and the Louisiana Board of 

Regents’ (LA BoR) statewide efforts to increase the education attainment of 

Louisiana’s adult citizens.  LA Board of Regents ($ N/A) 

2011-2014 Kaltenbaugh, L. and Mims-Devezin, L.  Common Core State Standards and 

Assessment: K-12/Postsecondary Alignment 

 (CTC) Grant.  LA Board of Regents ($7,500.00) 

2007 Mims-Devezin, Adegboye, and Kambhampati, M. S.  and Scineaux, S. Enhancement 

of Biology Research and Instruction at SUNO through acquisition of the Riboprinter.  

SUNO Enhancement Funds ($150,000.00) 

2006 Mims-Devezin, Adegboye, and Kambhampati, M. S.  and Scineaux, S. Enhancement 

of the Computer Lab for Biology Instruction at SUNO.  LA Board of Regents 

($50,000.00) 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 6 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
2006 Mims-Devezin, Adegboye, and Kambhampati, M. S.  and Scineaux, S. Enhancement 

of Microbiology, Cell and Molecular Biology, and Ecology Teaching and Research 

Infrastructure at SUNO.  LA Board of Regents ($38,632.00) 

2004 Adegboye, D.S., Mims-Devezin, L and Kambhampati, M. S.  Enhancement of 

Microbiology Teaching and Research Infrastructure at SUNO.  LA Board of Regents 

($53,497.00) 

2002 Adegboye, D. S., Mims, L. R., Ogra, M., and Kambhampati, M. S.  Enhancement of 

the Infrastructure for Pathogenic Microbiology Teaching Research. 

2000-2001 Modernizing the Biology Curriculum at Southern University at New Orleans.  

Department of Defense Infrastructure Support Program for HBCU/MI, ($ 194,298.00) 

 

 RESEARCH MENTORING

 
2007-2011  Mentor       SUNO/ LAMP (Leadership and  Mentoring Program) 
2004-2011  Mentor                SUNO/ LAMP (Louisiana Alliance for Minority Participation)   
1997-Present  Mentor                SUNO/ Department of Biology/Beta Beta Beta Biological 
      Honor Society  
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP (since)

 
2007  Peer Reviewer  Quality Matters:  Institutional Quality Assurance in Online Learning 
2007  Member  HBCU Faculty Development Network 
2006  Member  American Society for Microbiology  
2006  Member/Evaluator Southern Association of  Colleges and Schools 
2005  Member  National Institute of Sciences 
2001  Trainer for Marco Polo Marco Polo/ QUEST  
2000  Member  National Science Teachers Association  
2000  Member  Society for College Science Teachers    
1996  Member  Beta Kappa Chi Sci. Honor Society 
1991  Member / Advisor Beta Beta Beta Biological Honor Society 
1990  Member  Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, Inc.  
 

 ACADEMIC/RESEARCH ORGANIZATION(S) MEMBERSHIP(S):  

 
Beta Beta Beta Biological Honor Society, Beta Kappa Chi Scientific Honor Society, Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, 
Inc., National Science Teachers Association, National Association for Research in Science Teaching, American 
Society for Microbiology, National Institute of Science. 
 

 

 STUDENT CLUBS/SPONSOR  

 
Advisor/Sponsor of Beta Beta Beta Biological Honor Society 

 
 

 DEPARTMENTAL/UNIVERSITY COMMITTEES 

 
1. Land Grant Initiative Committee (System wide) (Chair for SUNO) 
2. Senior Exit Exam Committee (Co-Chair) 
3. Political Science Endowed Chair Committee, (Chair)  
4. L.A. Board of Regents State Articulation Officer (SUNO) 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 7 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
5. Council of Deans 
6. Commencement Committee 
7. SACS Compliance Task Force Committee 
8. Judicial Appeals Committee 
9. Honors Program Committee 
10. Early Start Program Committee 
 

 

 HONORS AND AWARDS 

 
2013  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Submitted proposals, New Orleans, LA  
2013  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for funded proposals, New Orleans, LA 
2013  Southern University System, Southern University System Faculty and Staff Research and Academic 
  Achievement Award for Most Proposals Awarded. 
2012 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Most Outstanding Grant Writer, New 

Orleans, LA 
2012  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Funded Proposals, New Orleans, LA 
2012 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Outstanding Contribution to Grantsmanship, 

New Orleans, LA 
2012  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Submitted Proposals, New Orleans, LA 
2012  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Most Submitted Proposals, New Orleans, LA 
2012  Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate for Most Funded Proposals, New Orleans, LA 
2012 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Appreciation for serving as a Judge, 

Enhancement, Enrichment, and Excellence in Mathematics and Science Program, New Orleans, 
LA 

2012 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Appreciation, School of Social Work, New 
Orleans, LA 

2011 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Appreciation for serving as a Judge, 
Enhancement, Enrichment, and Excellence in Mathematics and Science Program, New Orleans, 
LA 

2011 Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Appreciation as a Visiting Scientist, New 
Orleans, LA 

2009  Thurgood Marshall Distinguished Faculty Award, New Orleans Louisiana  
2008        Cambridge Who’s Who Registry Among Executive and Professional Women 
2008        Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Appreciation, Mathematics and Science Kamp 

for Beginners (MSKB) 
2007       Temple’s Preschool of Math & Science, New Orleans, Guest Speaker, Culminating Activity 
2007        MGE@MSA Arizona Student Research Conference, Judge, Tempe, AZ 
2007       Who’s Who Among American Teachers, Southern University at New Orleans 
2007       Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Grantsmanship Participation, New Orleans, 
2006       Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Successful Grantsmanship and Winning grants    
                          Award, New Orleans 
2005         Southern University at New Orleans, College of Science, Award for Excellence in Mentoring 
2005                   Southern University at New Orleans, Who’s Who Among Teachers in American Colleges and   
                          Universities.  
2004                   Southern University at New Orleans, College of Science, Award for Excellence in Teaching 
2004       Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Grantsmanship Participation, New Orleans, 
  LA 
2003       Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Outstanding Grantsmanship, New Orleans 
2001       Southern University at New Orleans, Certificate of Successful Grantsmanship and Winning Grants 

Award, New Orleans, LA 

 OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

 



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 8 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
*** Assisted the Health Information Management System’s Program with CAHIIM accreditation (2013) 
*** Assisted the College of Business with the AASCB (Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business)       
       accreditation (2012) 
*** Assisted with SUNO’s SACS reaffirmation of accreditation 2010 – 2012 and previous years 
*** Assisted the College of Education with NCATE accreditation 2008/2009 and previous years. 
***  Assisted Southern University at New Orleans with Articulation Agreements with Delgado Community College  
       and Southern University Shreveport Campus. 
*** Assisted with the development of a FERPA waiver form for Southern University at New Orleans (2013) 
*** Also identified a partner, Richard’s Disposal, Inc. for Southern University at New Orleans’ IWTP (Incumbent   
      Workers Training Program). 
 

 

 Date of Presentation  Presentation    Conference/Group 

 
2013 The STEM Village presented at the AACU Phase   Group/Conference 

                                     II of the Preparing Critical Faculty for the Future   

                                     Institute 

   Portland, OR 

2011  Preparing for Praxis II:  General Science   University 

   Southern University at New Orleans, New Orleans, LA 

2009  E-focused! Enhancing student Learning in Online   Conference 

Courses by Improving Institutional Readiness 

   SLOAN Consortium, San Jose, CA 

 

 

 

 

2008  Benefits of Joining Professional Organizations  University  

   Presented at the Honors Program Seminar  

   Southern University at New Orleans –  

   New Orleans, LA. 

2008  Implementing Learning Communities    Conference 

   Presented at the National Summer Institute  

   On Learning Communities,  

   The Evergreen State College –  

   Olympia, WA. 

2008  More Than Just a General Studies Degree    Group 

   Motivational Workshop  

   Southern University at New Orleans  

   General Studies Program 

   New Orleans, LA 

2006  Teaching Biology On-Line/ Online     Group 

   Resources available for Instruction   

   Southern University at New Orleans  

   New Orleans, LA 

2005  Integration of Technology and Virtual Labs   Conference 

   into the Biology Curriculum at SUNO:   

   Impact on Attitude in Learning Biology 

   Presented at The 2nd  Annual J.K. Haynes Teacher  

   Preparation Conference, Southern University,  

   Baton Rouge, LA 

        2004  A Successful Model for Integrating    Conference 

   High-Technology Courses for Content  

   Requirements in Science Education.  

   Presented at the First System-wide J.K.  

   Haynes Teacher  Preparation Conference,  

   Southern University –  



Lisa Mims-Devezin, Page 9 
Academic Excellence through Accountability 

 
   Baton Rouge, LA. 

2002  Case Study of Molecular Biology    Group 

   Course Development at  

   Southern Univ. @ N. O.  
 

 
 

EDUCATION 

INSTITUTION AND LOCATION DEGREE YEAR 
CONFERRED 

FIELD OF STUDY 

Southern Univ. A&M College,   

Baton Rouge, LA 

 

Southern Univ. A&M College,    

Baton Rouge, LA 

 

Southern Univ. at New Orleans    

N. O., LA  

Graduated Cum Laude 
 

Ph.D. 

 

 

M.S. 

 

 

B.S. 

2004  

 

 

1993 

 

 

1991 

Science/Math Ed. 
 

 

 

Biology/Microbiology 

 

 

Biology/Pre-Med 

 
 
 











































































































































































Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $24,206,570  $-00  $24,206,570  $24,206,570 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 22,988,444 1,891,817 24,880,260  24,880,260 92.4% 0

Funds Due From BOR

Federal 3,283,894 370,315 3,654,209  3,654,209 89.9% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015 28,737,020 356,250 29,093,270  28,666,974 100.2% 426,296

    Tuition - Spring 2016 26,080,975 284,250 26,365,225  25,702,984 101.5% 662,241

    Tuition - Summer 1,571,216 1,903,843 3,475,059  3,490,530 45.0% (15,471)

    Out-of-State Fees 8,889,189 349,960 9,239,149  7,101,738 125.2% 2,137,411

    Other 6,933,170 6,097,079 13,030,249  12,909,545 53.7% 120,704

InterAgency Transfer 2,381,827 1,091,712 3,473,539  4,896,768 48.6% (1,423,229)

Total Revenues  $125,072,305  $12,345,225  $137,417,530  $135,509,578 92.3% $1,907,952

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $56,666,296  $11,810,884  $68,477,180  $68,477,180 82.8%  $0 

  Other Compensation  $204,991 113,986 318,977  318,977 64.3% 0

  Related Benefits 24,843,730 6,423,266 31,266,996  30,514,921 81.4%  752,075 

Total Personal Services  $81,715,017  $18,348,136  $100,063,153  $99,311,078 82.3%  $752,075 

Travel  $411,722  $243,946  $655,668  $660,270 62.4% ($4,602)

  Operating Services 9,292,587 4,279,585 13,572,172  13,642,754 68.1%  (70,582)

  Supplies 825,778 794,228 1,620,006  1,674,694 49.3% (54,688)

Total Operating Expenses  $10,118,365  $5,073,814  $15,192,179  $15,317,448 66.1% ($125,269)

  Professional Services 1,233,955 645,179 1,879,134  1,866,789 66.1% 12,345

  Other Charges 3,676,683 2,017,607 5,694,290  6,290,478 58.4% (596,188)

  Debt Services 0 75,542 75,542 0 0% 75,542

  Interagency Transfers 4,423,663 1,956,021 6,379,684 6,442,984 69% (63,300)

Total Other Charges  $9,334,301  $4,694,349  $14,028,650  $14,600,251 63.9% ($571,601)

  General Acquisitions 166,649 112,587 279,236  292,011 57.1% (12,775)

  Library Acquisitions 395,251 67,398 462,649  462,649 85.4% (0)

  Major Repairs 0 7,000 7,000  7,000 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $561,900  $186,985  $748,885  $761,660 73.8% ($12,775)

Scholarships  $6,278,996  $450,000  $6,728,996  $4,858,871 129.2% $1,870,125

Total Expenditures  $108,420,301  $28,997,229  $137,417,530  $135,509,578 80.0%  $1,907,952 

Southern University System

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

1



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $635,897  $-00  $635,897  $635,897 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 2,485,802 0 2,485,802 2,485,802 100.0% 0

Funds Due To/ From Mgmt 

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015

    Tuition - Spring 2016

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $3,121,699  $-00  $3,121,699  $3,121,699 100.0% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $910,951  $294,454  $1,205,405  $1,205,405 75.6% 0

  Other Compensation 29,000 23,000 52,000 52,000 55.8% 0

  Related Benefits 300,445 198,677 499,122 499,122 60.2% 0

Total Personal Services  $1,240,396  $516,131  $1,756,527  $1,756,527 70.6% $0

Travel  $45,853  $30,147  $76,000  $76,000 60.3% $0

  Operating Services 69,682 38,301 107,983 107,983 64.5% 0

  Supplies 6,982 22,448 29,430 29,430 23.7% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $76,664  $60,749  $137,413  $137,413 55.8% $0

  Professional Services 49,500  (1,500) 48,000 48,000 103.1% 0

  Other Charges 14,269 680,565 694,834 694,834 2.1% 0

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers 408,925 408,925 408,925 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $63,769  $1,087,990  $1,151,759  $1,151,759 5.5% $0

  General Acquisitions 0 0 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0

  Major Repairs 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs 0 0 0 0 0.0% $0

Scholarships $0

Total Expenditures  $1,426,682  $1,695,017  $3,121,699  $3,121,699 45.7% $0

Southern University Board and System Administration

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

2



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct $14,279,461 $0  $14,279,461  $14,279,461 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 10,876,422 879,552 11,755,974  11,755,974 92.5% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015 16,017,557 356,250 16,373,807  15,654,873 102.3%  $718,934 

    Tuition - Spring 2016 14,118,911 284,250 14,403,161  13,903,178 101.6% 499,983

    Tuition - Summer 1,071,954 1,148,576 2,220,530  2,220,530 48.3% 0

    Out-of-State Fees 6,077,680 279,798 6,357,478  4,367,840 139.1% 1,989,638

    Other 5,350,838.4 6,021,835 11,372,673  11,372,673 47.0% 0

InterAgency Transfer 2,381,827 1,091,712 3,473,539  4,896,768 48.6% (1,423,229)

Total Revenues  $70,174,652  $10,061,972  $80,236,624  $78,451,297 89.4% $1,785,327

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries $30,742,174 $6,667,090  $37,409,264  $37,409,264 82.2% 0

  Other Compensation 149,741 63,736 213,477  213,477 70.1% 0

  Related Benefits 14,385,284 3,744,468 18,129,752  18,129,752 79.3% 0

Total Personal Services  $45,277,199  $10,475,294  $55,752,493  $55,752,493 81.2% $0

 Travel $63,479 $169,021 232,500  $232,500 27.3% $0

  Operating Services 5,183,389 3,074,952 8,258,341  8,258,341 62.8% 0

  Supplies 542,290 391,271 933,561  933,561 58.1% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $5,725,678  $3,466,224  $9,191,902  $9,191,902 120.9% $0

  Professional Services 908,822 322,175 1,230,997  1,230,997 73.8% 0

  Other Charges 3,098,539 608,632 3,707,171  3,707,171 83.6% 0

  Debt Services 0 0

  Interagency Transfers 2,324,696 1,277,869 3,602,565  3,602,565 64.5% 0

Total Other Charges  $6,332,057  $2,208,676  $8,540,733  $8,540,733 74.1% $0

  General Acquisitions 97,349 0.00 97,349  97,349 100.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 118,519 19,130 137,649  137,649 86.1% 0

  Major Repairs 7,000 7,000 7,000 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $215,868  $26,130  $241,998  $241,998 89.2% $0

Scholarships $5,851,998  $425,000  $6,276,998  $4,491,671 130.3% $1,785,327

Total Expenditures  $63,466,279  $16,770,344  $80,236,624  $78,451,297 80.9% $1,785,327

Southern University - Baton Rouge 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

3



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $2,130,871  $2,130,871  $2,130,871 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated $1,882,457  97,508  1,979,965  1,979,965 95.1% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015 $3,385,607  3,385,607  3,385,607 100.0% (0)

    Tuition - Spring 2016 $3,133,105  3,133,105  3,134,362 100.0% (1,257)

    Tuition - Summer $219,335  480,665  700,000  700,000 31.3% (0)

    Out-of-State Fees $1,221,332  60,162  1,281,494  1,281,494 95.3% 0

    Other $562,140  10,244  572,384  572,384 98.2% (0)

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $12,534,847  $648,579  $13,183,426  $13,184,683 95.1% ($1,257)

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  5,944,201  1,009,946  6,954,147  6,954,147 85.5% 0

  Other Compensation

  Related Benefits  1,882,328  892,230  2,774,558  2,774,558 67.8% (0)

 Total Personal Services  $7,826,529  $1,902,176  $9,728,705  $9,728,705 80.4% ($0)

 Travel $149,453  $25,547  $175,000  $175,000 85.4% $0

  Operating Services  1,596,614 68,938  1,665,552  1,706,588 93.6% (41,036)

  Supplies $83,767 16,233  100,000  100,000 83.8% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $1,680,381  $85,171  $1,765,553  $1,806,588 93.0% ($41,035)

  Professional Services $179,354 301,157  480,511  480,511 37.3% 0

  Other Charges $8,646 103,410  112,056  112,056 7.7% 0

  Debt Services

  Interagency Transfers $87,328 128,495  215,823  215,823 40.5% 0

Total Other Charges  $275,328  $533,062  $808,390  $808,390 34.1% $0

  General Acquisitions $31,046 43,954  75,000  75,000 41.4% 0

  Library Acquisitions $276,732 48,268  325,000  325,000 85.1% (0)

  Major Repairs  - 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $307,778  $92,222  $400,000  $400,000 76.9% ($0)

Scholarships $305,779  $-00  $305,779  $266,000 115.0% $39,779

Total Expenditures  $10,545,248  $2,638,178  $13,183,426  $13,184,683 80.0% ($1,257)

   

Southern University Law Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

4



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $3,126,712  $3,126,712  $3,126,712 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 2,947,136 244,908 3,192,044 3,192,044 92.3% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015 5,324,813 5,324,813 5,326,494 100.0% (1,681)

    Tuition - Spring 2016 5,060,976 5,060,976 5,181,928 97.7% (120,952)

    Tuition - Summer 221,602 221,602 300,000 0.0% (78,398)

    Out-of-State Fees 525,111 10,000 535,111 422,082 124.4% 113,029

    Other 842,490 35,000 877,490 789,488 106.7% 88,002

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $17,827,238  $511,510  $18,338,748  $18,338,748 97.2% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $9,292,087  $1,527,365  $10,819,452  $10,819,452 85.9% 0 

  Other Compensation

  Related Benefits 4,258,022 576,281 4,834,303 4,082,228 104.3% 752,075

Total Personal Services 13,550,109 2,103,646 15,653,755 14,901,680 90.9% $752,075

Travel $0 $0 0.0% $0

  Operating Services 677,314 741,093 1,418,407 1,418,407 47.8% 0

  Supplies 92,054 196,884 288,938 330,552 27.8% (41,614)

Total Operating Expenses  $769,368  $937,977  $1,707,345  $1,748,959 44.0% ($41,614)

  Professional Services 0 0 0

  Other Charges 350,195 250,000 600,195 1,247,356 28.1% (647,161)

  Debt Services 0

  Interagency Transfers 194,280 183,173 377,453 440,753 44.1% (63,300)

Total Other Charges  $544,475  $433,173  $977,648  $1,688,109 32.3% ($710,461)

  General Acquisitions 0 0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0

  Major Repairs 0 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% $0

Scholarships $0 $0 $0 0.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $14,863,952  $3,474,796  $18,338,748  $18,338,748 81.1% $0

Southern University at New Orleans

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

5



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $2,820,954  $-00  $2,820,954  $2,820,954 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 2,507,347 84,565 2,591,912 2,591,912 96.7% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015 4,009,043 0 4,009,043 4,300,000 93.2% (290,957)

    Tuition - Spring 2016 3,767,983 0 3,767,983 3,483,516 108.2% 284,467

    Tuition - Summer 279,927 53,000 332,927 270,000 103.7% 62,927

    Out-of-State Fees 1,065,066 0 1,065,066 1,030,322 103.4% 34,744

    Other 177,702 30,000 207,702 175,000 101.5% 32,702

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $14,628,022  $167,565  $14,795,587  $14,671,704 99.7%  $123,883 

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $6,383,561  $1,664,457  $8,048,018  $8,048,018 79.3% $0

  Other Compensation

  Related Benefits 2,731,391 833,653 3,565,044 3,565,044 76.6% 0

Total Personal Services  $9,114,952  $2,498,110  $11,613,062  $11,613,062 78.5% $0

Travel  $32,098  $-00  $32,098  $36,700 87.5% ($4,602)

  Operating Services 1,416,065 200,000 1,616,065 1,645,611 86.1% (29,546)

  Supplies 44,561 112,127 156,688 169,762 26.2% (13,074)

Total Operating Expenses  $1,460,626  $312,127  $1,772,753  $1,815,373 80.5% ($42,620)

  Professional Services 67,574 10,771 78,345 66,000 102.4% 12,345

  Other Charges 205,034 150,000 355,034 304,061 67.4% 50,973

  Debt Services 0 75,542 75,542 0 0.0% 75,542

  Interagency Transfers 591,268 132,240 723,508 723,508 82% 0

Total Other Charges  $863,876  $368,553  $1,232,429  $1,093,569 79.0% $138,860

  General Acquisitions 225 0 225 13,000 1.7% (12,775)

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $225  $-00  $225  $13,000 1.7% ($12,775)

Scholarships  $120,020  $25,000  $145,020  $100,000 120.0% $45,020

Total Expenditures  $11,591,797  $3,203,790  $14,795,587  $14,671,704 79.0%  $123,883 

Southern University at Shreveport 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

6



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

4/30/2016 Projected FY 2015-16 as of 6/30/16 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $1,212,675  $1,212,675  $1,212,675 100.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 2,289,279 585,284 2,874,563 2,874,563 79.6% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0

Federal 3,283,894 370,315 3,654,209 3,654,209 89.9% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2015

    Tuition - Spring 2016

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $6,785,848  $955,599  $7,741,447  $7,741,447 87.7% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $3,393,322  $647,572 4,040,894  $4,040,894 84.0% 0

  Other Compensation 26,250 27,250 53,500 53,500 49.1% 0

  Related Benefits 1,286,260 177,957 1,464,217 1,464,217 87.8% 0

Total Personal Services  $4,705,832  $852,779  $5,558,611 5,558,611 84.7% $0

Travel  $120,839  $19,231  $140,070  $140,070 86.3% 0

  Operating Services 349,523 156,301 505,824 505,824 69.1% 0

  Supplies 56,124 55,265 111,389 111,389 50.4% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $405,647  $211,566  $617,213  $617,213 65.7% $0

  Professional Services 28,705 12,576 41,281 41,281 69.5% 0

  Other Charges 225,000 225,000 225,000 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0

  Interagency Transfers 1,226,091 (174,681) 1,051,410 1,051,410 116.6% 0

Total Other Charges  $1,254,796  $62,895  $1,317,691  $1,317,691 95.2% $0

  General Acquisitions 38,029 68,633 106,662 106,662 35.7% 0

  Library Acquisitions

  Major Repairs

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $38,029  $68,633  $106,662  $106,662 35.7% $0

Scholarships  $1,200  $-00 1,200  $1,200 100.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $6,526,343  $1,215,104  $7,741,447  $7,741,447 84.3% $0

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

As of  April 30, 2016

7







SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

PRESIDENT/CHANCELLOR 

EVALUATION PROCEDURE 

1. Evaluation Committee:

The Chairman of the Board shall appoint the Personnel Affairs Committee to act to evaluate the

President/Chancellor of the System. It shall be the Committee's duty to review the evaluation

instrument, distribute it to the Board members, collect and analyze the completed document. The

President/Chancellor of the Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus shall have a

formal evaluation conducted annually in June.

2. Presidential Self-Assessment:

The President/Chancellor shall present in writing to the Board members by the June Board

of Supervisors meeting, a selfassessment which shall include, but not be limited to, (1) an

assessment of performance in relation to the goals and objectives for the period for which he/she is

being evaluated in the six (6) areas of the evaluation instrument; (2) a statement of goals and

objectives for the next year; (3) a description of major areas of institutional concern; and ( 4) an

assessment of major factors which may inhibit or alter expectations and objectives.

3. Evaluation Process:

Each Board member shall receive a copy of the President/Chancellor's self-assessment prior to

completing the evaluation form. The Committee, having made an analysis of the evaluation, shall

present to the full Board, in Executive Session, the final results on or before its annual meeting in

June. The Board shall then meet in Executive Session with the President/Chancellor to present and

discuss the final analysis of the evaluation.

4. Public Announcement:

The Chairman of the Board shall announce to the public when the Board's assessment of the

President/Chancellor has been completed.



NAME: 

TITLE: 

Ray Belton 

President/Chancellor 

PRESIDENT/CHANCELLOR 

EVALUATION FORM 

PART/ 

ADMINISTRATIVE DATA 

Type of Report: 

Period Covered 

From: 

PART/I 

RATING SCALE 

To: 

Please rate the System President/Chancellor on the following criteria by placing an "X" in the appropriate box 

5 - SUPERIOR 4- ABOVE AVERAGE 3- AVERAGE 2 - BELOW AVERAGE 1 - POOR 

NOTE 

All marks of 2 or 1 MUST be specifically substantiated in Part IV of the written performance evaluation 

Page 11 



Page 12 

PART III 

PERFORMANCE FACTORS 

5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

1. COMMITMENT TO SYSTEM/SUBR MISSIONS:

a. Evidence of an understanding of the missions of the System/SUBR and the special

demands placed on them.

b. Demonstrates a personal sense of responsibility for helping the System/SUBR and its

component institutions achieve success. D D D D D 

C. Concern for the general welfare of the institutions. 5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

d. The President/Chancellor communicates and demonstrates a clear understanding of 5 4 3 2 

the goals and missions of the institutions. D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

2. LEADERSHIP ABILITY:

a. Develops annual institutional goals and implements long range planning for the

System/SUBR.

b. Establishes administrative policies and procedures for the System/SUBR

campus in keeping with the mission of each entity. D D D D D 

C. The President/Chancellor encourages the development of innovative programs to 5 4 3 2 

meet changing needs of constituents. D D D D D 

d. Based upon the President/Chancellor's leaderships, Board of Supervisors, faculty

5 4 3 2 and staff have confidence in the future of the university generally and SUBR

specifically. D D D D D 



Page 13 

e. The President/Chancellor is effective in resolving significant problems. 5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

f. The President/Chancellor's leadership has a positive influence on employee morale 5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

and performance.

g. The President/Chancellor fosters an environment that stimulates teaching, learning,

scholarship, professional development and the pursuit of support to enhance academic

programs and innovation.

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

3. MANAGEMENT EFFECTIVENESS:

a. Exhibits effective management skills to identify problem areas, weaknesses, and

strengths of the System/SUBR institutions.

b. Effectively executes and implements the educational, administrative and fiscal

policies, procedures, directives, and programs adopted by the administration/Board

for the governance of the University System. D D D D D 

C. Has in place measurement methods to judge and monitor the University System's 5 4 3 2 

performance. D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

d. Develops and implements policies and procedures for the University System 

and SUBR.

e. The President/Chancellor effectively supervisors the senior management teams. 5 4 3 2 1 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

D D D D D 

5 4 3 2 

f. The President/Chancellor is effective in adapting to and coordinating System/

SUBR responses to necessary changes, accordingly.

g. The President/Chancellor strives to maintain faculty salaries at a competitive

level throughout the University System. D D D D D 



4. 

h. The President/Chancellor makes effective use of, and allocates, all resources

(finances, personnel, equipment, space).

FISCAL MANAGEMENT: 

a. Develops a sound fiscal management system.

b. Prepares and presents a consolidated budget of the System and SUBR to the

Board.

C. Assumes and retains control at all times over the budgets of the System and SUBR

as approved by the Board.

d. Moves quickly to correct fiscal problems.

e. The President/Chancellor is well prepared and informed when presenting budgetary and

programmatic requests/reports to the Board.

5. FUNDRAISING:

a. Directs and encourages fundraising from private, corporate, and public

sources.

b. Is effective in fundraising and in developing alumni support.

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

0 

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

D 

Page 14 

4 3 2 

D D 0 D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

0 D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D 0 D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 



6. HUMAN RELATIONS/COMMUNICATIONS SKILLS:

a. The President/Chancellor has a professional image in state government.

b. The President/Chancellor builds a positive relationship through open communication

with external groups and agencies including media, community and alumni.

C. The President/Chancellor involves and interacts with students on all campuses.

d. The President/Chancellor keeps the Board informed about matters affecting the

institutions.

PART IV 

PERFORMANCE AND POTENTIAL EVALUATION 

A. Comment(s) on Specific Aspects of Performance and Potential for Continued Service.

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

D 

5 

D 

Page IS 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 

4 3 2 

D D D D 





















April 2016 

Southern University Law Center 

Board of Supervisors Report 

INSIDE THIS ISSUE 

NITA Trial Skills Training .......2 

Louisiana Supreme Court ........3 

Lt. Gov. Billy Nungesser ..........3 

Latriece Watkins: Five Charac-

teristics of a Leader..................4 

Student News ...........................5 

SPECIAL POINTS OF INTEREST 

 Faculty News 

 Alumni News 

SULC 2016 ALUMNI HALL OF FAME 

SULC alumni Chet Boudreaux, ’03, of St. Francisville, Louisiana; 
Brian Caubarreaux, ’92, of Marksville, Louisiana; Debra Page 
Coleman, ’88, of Atlanta, Georgia; Marcia Graf Pfeiffer, ’91, of 
Jennings, Louisiana; and retired Prof. Arthur Stallworth, ’75, of 
Baton Rouge, were inducted into the 2016 Southern University 
Law Center (SULC) Hall of Fame at a recent gala held at the Re-
naissance Baton Rouge. The gala was part of the four-day annual 
SULC Alumni Round-Up, April 6-9. 

Inductees were selected from among more than 4,000 SULC 
alumni. Through their great work, the members of this elite 
group have made an indelible mark on not only the community,  

but throughout the nation and the world 

From left: Prof. Shawn Vance; Cynthia Reed, Director of Alumni 

Affairs; 2016 SULC Hall of Fame inductees Brian Caubarreaux, 

Chet Boudreaux, Debra Page Coleman, Marcia Graf Pfeiffer; and 

Prof. Arthur Stallworth (retd.); Vice Chancellor Roederick White; 

and Chancellor John Pierre. 

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://educateforabettertomorrow.org/img/sulc_logo.jpg&imgrefurl=http://educateforabettertomorrow.org/partnerschools.html&h=181&w=225&tbnid=k1SlU70KknsYdM:&docid=yngoqbB53AaPrM&ei=_DPKVZmjOoybyATM-ajoAg&tbm=isch&ved=0C


 

 

2 

NITA TRIAL SKILLS TRAINING 

  
SULC and the National Institute for Trial Advocacy Training (NITA) 
are offering a free trial skills training program for legal services attor-
neys and law students to be held Monday-Thursday, May 9-12, 2016. 

Thirty-two attorneys from legal services providers from across the 
state and 16 SULC students representing graduating seniors and 
those currently enrolled have signed up to participate in the inten-
sive, hands-on, four-day program. The training, which will pair the 
public service attorneys with students, will teach students how to be-
come better advocates for their clients. 

Registration is set for 8:30-9 a.m., and sessions are to be held from 9 
a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Wednesday, and 9 a.m. to noon on 
Thursday in room assignments throughout SULC’s A. A. Lenoir Hall. 

This program is one of two offered through the SULC/NITA partner-
ship that will give students a competitive edge. The second program 
is a pilot program in which NITA will conduct a two-day class on cli-
ent interviewing and fact-investigation skills. The classes will begin 
in fall 2016. SULC is one of the first law schools in the country to par-
ticipate in the program. 
 

 

NITA Trial Skills training session on Monday, May 9, 2016. 

FACULTY NEWS 

Prof. Dorothy Jackson re-
cently published a booklet 
titled A Layman’s Guide to 
Elder Law and Estate Plan-
ning. The project was made 
possible through the gener-
ous financial support of the 
American Association of 
Retired Persons (AARP) 
Foundation. 

The project is part of the 

SULC Elder Law/Succesions 
Clinic’s outreach services. 
The materials cover a variety 
of topics such as the func-
tion of wills and trusts and 

the practical/legal im-
portance of the successions 
process, as well as the rele-
vancy of executing ad-
vanced directives and pow-
ers of attorney. 

Prof. Shenequa Grey recently 
published a law review arti-
cle titled Thirty-Nine Distinc-
tions Between the Louisiana 
Code of Evidence and the Fed-
eral Rules of Evidence in vol-
ume 90 of the Tulane Law Re-
view, a national flagship top 
50 journal. 

In the piece, Grey analyzes the 
differences between the federal 
and Louisiana rules of evi-
dence. Drafters of the Louisiana 
Code of Evidence largely mod-
eled it after the Federal Rules of 
Evidence of 1975.  

http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/JacksonLR1Booklet.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/JacksonLR1Booklet.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/JacksonLR1Booklet.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/GreyLR4.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/GreyLR4.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/GreyLR4.pdf
http://sulc.edu.php54-2.dfw1-1.websitetestlink.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/GreyLR4.pdf


 

 

LOUISIANA SUPREME COURT “RIDES THE CIRCUIT” AT SULC 

The Louisiana Supreme Court held oral argument at Southern Universi-

ty Law Center (SULC) on Tuesday, March 15, 2016, on a family law case. 

 

The session was a part of an ongoing effort to educate and inform stu-

dents as well as the general public about the work of the Louisiana Su-

preme Court. 

 

The session was open to law students, university and high school stu-

dents, faculty, and the general public. 

 

The Court periodically uses other venues other than the Supreme Court 

building in New Orleans. This this practice is known as “riding the cir-

cuit.” According to Louisiana Supreme Court Chief Justice Bernette 

Joshua Johnson,  “before transportation made it possible to travel easily 

to New Orleans, the Louisiana Supreme Court was constitutionally re-

quired to ‘ride the circuit’ to ensure citizens statewide would have access 

to justice,” Chief Justice Johnson said. 

 

The Louisiana Supreme Court last held court at Southern University Law 

Center in 1997. 

 

Southern University Law Center Chancellor John K. Pierre, stated that  

SULC was “delighted” to host the session because of the “high priority” 

the school places on civil engagement and access to legal education. 

  3 

Chancellor John K. Pierre with Louisiana 

Supreme Court Chief Justice Bernette 

Joshua Johnson. 

Oral argument at SULC on March 15, 2016. 

LT. GOVERNOR BILLY NUNGESSER VISITS SULC 

The Southern University Law Center Maritime Law Society hosted a 
presentation by Lt. Governor Billy Nungesser on Tuesday, March 15, 
2016 at SULC. 

Lt. Gov. Nungesser shared his plans for Louisiana Tourism, includ-
ing promotion of Louisiana seafood. 

“We are pleased to have the opportunity to have the Lt. Governor 

come to SULC and applaud the efforts of our student leaders in 

providing opportunities to highlight the various areas of the practice 

of law that interests them,” said Chancellor John K. Pierre. “Troy 

Parria is not only vice president of the Maritime Law Society, but a 

member of the Louisiana Seafood Promotion and Marketing Board, 

representing the Louisiana Shrimp Association.” Lt. Gov. Nungesser with  
Chancellor Pierre. 



 

 

ALUMNI NEWS 

Dennis Blunt, ’91, litiga-
tion partner at Phelps 
Dunbar, has been elected 
chairman of the Board of 
Directors of the Baton 
Rouge Area Foundation 
(BRAF). Blunt most re-
cently served as vice 
chairman of the organiza-
tion. 

BRAF connects philan-
thropists with nonprofits 
to make sure the needs of 
Baton Rouge area com-
munities are met. For 
instance, donors fund 
music programs for chil-
dren, provide money to 
feed the hungry, and un-
derwrite education re-
form. Since its inception, 
BRAF and its donors have 
funded more than $350 
million in grants. 

Blunt practices in the ar-

ea of commercial litiga-

tion, with a focus on busi-

ness disputes including 

business torts and insur-

ance company solvency 

and regulation. He is a 

board member of the 

Public Affairs Research 

Council of Louisiana, a 

Fellow of the American 

and Louisiana Bar foun-

dations, and a board 

member of the Baton 

Rouge Bar Association. 

Blunt was honored as a 

2010 SULC Distinguished 

Alumnus. 

FIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF A LEADER 

  4 

The 2016 Law Week featured speaker Latriece Watkins, senior vice presi-
dent of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., shared five characteristics of a successful 
leader in hopes of inspiring the audience members to become the best that 
they can be. 

Watkins’s presentation on March 15 was sponsored by the Chancellor’s 
Office, with a salute to the observance of March as Women’s Month. A 
native of McGehee, Arkansas, the Wal-Mart executive described herself as 
the first in her family to go to college, an only child from a long line of 
women, and one who has cultivated great girlfriends.  Each of these cir-
cumstances has had its effect on her life, including teaching her how to 
take charge and boosting her confidence. 
 
Watkins is also a mom who values confidence, caring, and curious, which 
she feels are her best attributes and have provided her with great career 
success. A graduate of Spelman College and the University of Arkansas 
School of Law, Watkins joined Wal-Mart in 1997 as an intern and in the 
last 19 years successfully climbed the ladder of greater responsibility and 
position doing what she believes leaders do. 

Leaders do five things well, she says, discussing what she means by each. 
First, she says, “They do hard work, meaning they do more than others.” 
Leaders bring their authentic selves, which she described as not an excuse 
to show up with flaws and expect others to be impressed, but to bring 
one’s whole self. 

Ms. Watkins with stu-

dents attending the pro-

gram. 

http://www.sulc.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/Dennis-Blunt-horizontal.jpg


 

 

STUDENT NEWS 

  5 

 

 Nchekube Onyima, a rising third-year student in the 
Evening Division, has been selected for an internship posi-
tion with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 
(OCC) in Washington, D.C. 

The position is offered through the very competitive intern-
ship program of The Washington Center for Internships and 
Academic Seminars and the Department of Treasury. 

In addition to the internship experience, this position in-

cludes travel assistance to the area, a paid stipend, as well as 

housing accommodations. The internship period is sched-

uled to run from early June to early August 2016. 

Pictured at the 2016 Barristers’ Ball where they were sworn in are 2016-2017 SBA officers–Front row, from left: Robin 
Winn, Kenneesha Johnson, Amariha Fort, Alonna Murray, Jordan Franklin, Britney Duke, Otia Bowie, and Ryan 
Lloyd; Back row, from left: Hunter Thomas, David Points, Gary Williams, Alvarez Hertzock, Dmitrius McGruder, and 
Dadrius Lanus. 

 

Congratulations to the Southern University Law Center’s 2016-2017 Student Bar Association (SBA) officers, 
who began their term April 15: 

President, Jordan Franklin; vice president, Robin Winn; secretary, Kenneesha Johnson; treasurer, 

Ryan Lloyd; parliamentarian, Hunter Thomas; ABA representative, David Points; Evening Class presi-

dent, Dadrius Lanus; Evening Class representatives, Alvarez Hertzock and Dmitrius McGruder; 3L 

Class president, Alonna Murray; 3L Class representative, Amariha Fort; 2L Class president: Gary Wil-

liams; and 2L Class Representatives, Otia Bowie and Britney Duke. 

********************************************************************************************** 




























































	Sanders Jr  Averil.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16




